M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 28, 2001
10:22 A M

TAPES

SFC-01 # 90, Side A
SFC 01 # 90, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Pete Kelly convened the neeting at approximately 10:22
A M

PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senat or Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senator Loren Leman

Senat or Lyda G een

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donal d O son

Al so Attending: SENATOR R CK HALFORD; REPRESENTATI VE GARY STEVENS;
KAREN PERDUE, Conmi ssioner, Departnment of Health and Soci al
Servi ces; MARY MCDOWELL, Conm ssioner, Commercial Fisheries Entry
Conmi ssi on (CFEC), Departnent of Fish & Gane, Juneau; STEVE WH TE,
Assi stant Attorney General, Departnment of Law.

SUMVARY | NFORVATI ON

SB 165- EDUCATI ON TAX ON EMPLOYMENT
Fol | owi ng di scussion, the bill was held in Cormttee.
SB 198- STATEW DE SUI Cl DE PREVENTI ON COUNCI L

Following limted discussion, CS SB 198 (HES) was reported out of
Commi ttee.

HB 194- COMMERCI AL FI SHI NG LI CENSE & PERM T FEES
Fol l owi ng Commttee discussion, CS HB 194 (FIN) was reported out of

SFC- 01 (1) 04/ 28/ 01



Conmittee.
#SB198

CS FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 198( HES)
"An Act establishing the Statew de Suicide Prevention
Council; and providing for an effective date."

SENATOR RICK HALFORD explained that SB 198 would establish a
statew de suicide council made up of fifteen private and public
menbers representing rural and urban Al aska. There would be two
menbers from both the House and the Senate and the Governor woul d
appoi nt el even nmenbers, including experts in substance abuse and
nmental health, as well as people who have been directly inpacted by
sui cide and who work with youth across the State.

Senator Halford reiterated that suicide is an on-gong epidemc in
many parts of the State, especially in rural Al aska, and currently
the nunbers are at an all time peak. The council would focus on
finding ways to reduce suicide rates, broaden public awareness of
t he suicide warning signs, and enhance suicide prevention services
and prograns throughout the State. He pointed out that the suicide
prevention council has bi-partisan support throughout the Senate.

KAREN PERDUE, Conmi ssioner, Departnment of Health and Soci al
Services, noted that the Departnent supports the proposed
| egi slation. She indicated that the fiscal note was a responsible
projection of the anticipated costs. She offered to answer
guestions of the Commttee.

Senator Green asked if the fiscal note represented a fourteen or
fifteen nenber board.

Commi ssi oner Perdue commented that fourteen was an error and that
it should indicate a fifteen-nenber board.

Senat or Green noved to report CS SB 198 (HES) from Conmittee with
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and with the acconpanying fiscal note.
There being no objection, it was so ordered.

CS SB 198 (HES) MOWED from Conmttee wth a “do pass”
recommendation and with fiscal note #1 by Departnent of Health &
Soci al Servi ces.

#SB165

SENATE BI LL NO. 165

SFC- 01 (2) 04/ 28/ 01



"An Act inposing a tax on enploynent; and providing for an
effective date.”

SENATOR AUSTERMAN stated that SB 165 would inpose a tax of $100
dollars a year on each enpl oyed individual ages 19 years and ol der,
and would include self-enployed persons. Under the bill, the
enpl oyer woul d deduct $50 dollars from the enployee’'s salary on
each of their first tw regular payrolls after January 1 of the
cal endar year. A provision would be added to prevent the tax from
bei ng taken out nore than one tinme when the enpl oyee provi des proof
to their new enployer that the tax has been satisfied. The tax
woul d be deposited into the State’'s general fund, however,
accounted for separately. The anmounts woul d be appropriated for
education only. Senator Austerman reiterated that education is
under funded.

Co-Chair Kelly responded that he liked the concept, as it had no
provi sions for incone.

Senat or Austerman noted that there had been recommendati ons that
the tax be taken fromthe Permanent Fund D vidend. He acknow edged
that there are a nunber of ideas floating around as to when and how
to tap that $100 dol | ars.

Senat or Hof f man opposed a check being taken fromthe Permanent Fund
D vidend as there are many people working in the State that do not
col l ect the dividend.

Senat or Lenman conmmented that the Permanent Fund check off would
work to help reduce the cost of an admnistration fee collection.
He agreed that the | aw shoul d extend beyond those that collect the
di vi dend.

Senator Ward asked if there had been consideration given to
privatizing the action and perhaps using a head tax.

Senat or Austerman replied that had not been consi dered.

Senat or Ward supported the State placing a constitutional spending
limt before the voters. He inquired how the anount had been
det er m ned.

Senat or Austerman replied that the nunber had been *picked out of
the air” with consideration to Senator Wlkins's SB 1.

Senator W/ ken nentioned that each year his office undertakes a
survey to 10,000 constituents. Five percent of the people, who

SFC- 01 (3) 04/ 28/ 01



responded, thought that a $200 school tax was favorable. He noted
that he had an anendnent, pending arrival, and asked that the bil
be held until that tine. He suggested that the bill mght focus
effort on equal treatnent for education throughout the State.
Co-Chair Kelly thought the bill would help to organize Al aska to
pay part of the way for education.

Senator Wl ken interjected that perhaps the State should ask $100
dollars for organized Al aska and $400 dollars for wunorganized
Al aska. He pointed out that there is statutory ability to charge
each area differently.

Senator Hof fman cl ai med that would not be fair and that he assuned
that the anmendnment woul d not achi eve what Senator WI ken i nt ended.

Senator W/ ken stated that he wanted to address those that are not
paying for their share of the education costs.

Senator O son comented that he would not support the concept
proposed by Senator W/ ken.

Co-Chair Kelly interjected that in his district, an education tax,
is the only tax that is supported.

Co- Chair Donl ey agreed, however, pointed out that a $100 dol |l ar tax
woul d only address five percent of the fiscal gap.

Co-Chair Kelly agreed with Co-Chair Donley.

Senat or Austerman stated that the | egislation was not introduced to
solve the fiscal gap, but instead to create a discussion point
regardi ng education funding. He added that the entire issue on the
education gap would take much nore than the proposed bill to
addr ess.

Senator Wl ken reiterated that a Permanent Fund check off in the
Rural Education Attendance Areas (REAA) coul d work.

Co-Chair Kelly noted that SB 165 would be HELD in Commttee for
further consideration.

AT EASE 10:50 AM 10:55 AM

#SB194

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 194(FIN)
"An Act relating to fees for cormercial fishing |licenses and

SFC- 01 (4) 04/ 28/ 01



permts; and providing for an effective date."

REPRESENTATI VE GARY STEVENS stated that HB 194 woul d repeal current
statute that requires the Commercial Fisheries Entry Conm ssion
(CFEC) to charge non-resident fishers three tines the anount
charged a resident fisher and would replace it wth a provision
that gives CFEC the authority to charge non-resident fishers as
close as is practicable to the maxi nrum anmount all owed by | aw.

By passing the legislation, CFEC woul d discontinue the practice of
charging three to one and instead would charge the maxi num anount
that is allowed by law. Starting in January, CFEC would cal cul ate
the fee differential based on the two budget categories that the
court has allowed. The Departnment of Law is hopeful that they wll

prevail in their appeal and once the court makes it final ruling,
CFEC would be able to include some of the other four budget
categories into the formla. He added that the bill wll

strengthen the States position in the current court case.

Senator Green asked if the court case was not passed, wll the
State owe $22 nmillion dollars.

Representative Stevens explained that if the State is not all owed
any additional categories through the court system the State is
facing a pay back of $22 million dollars. Al aska has been chargi ng
out-of-state fishernen nore than in-state fishernen.

Senat or Green asked who is the “we”.

Representative Stevens replied that the “we” is the State of Al aska
and the CFEC and that the State is being sued.

Senator Green clarified that the State is the entity that will be
liable if the class action suit is |ost.

Senator WI ken asked what the reduced fee count was.

Representative Stevens explained that was a fee allowed at a
reduced | evel for those that |live at poverty |evel

Senator WIken asked who was the inpoverished non-resident
commerci al fisherman.

Representative Stevens replied that the criteria was quite
explicate through CFEC docunentation. He requested that question
be deferred to the CFEC Conm ssioner. He added that there are
only a limted nunber of fishermen in that category.

SFC- 01 (5) 04/ 28/ 01



Senat or Wl ken referenced the proposed anpbunts, to which the bil
recoomends that the rates be raised. He asked if it would be
essential to stay within the 3 to 1 category.

Representative Stevens countered that the intent is to get away
fromthe 3 to 1 rating.

Senator Austerman interjected that the “poverty” question also
applies to sport fishernen.

Representative Stevens noted that poverty level was based on
househol d i ncone, assets, and financial resources.

Senat or Hof f man voi ced concern that through the |egislation, in al
cases, residents would be increased and in all other cases, non-
residents woul d be decreased. He asked if there was any possible
way to hold residents ‘harnless’.

Representative Stevens explained that the l|egislation would no
| onger nmake the 3-1 ratio available. It would be based on ot her
cat egori es. The United Fishernen of Alaska (UFA) are fully in
agreenent with the resident fees. The noney going into the CFEC
will be used for the commercial fisheries. He added that the
| egi sl ati on was a recommendation fromthe fishernmen of Al aska.

Senat or Hof fman pointed out that the only increases were to the
poverty category.

Representative Stevens acknow edged that was true and the reason
for that increase was that CFEC was paying into the fisherman fund
nore than they are receiving fromthose peopl es.

Senat or Austerman explained that part of the issue is how much
noney the State puts into the managenent of their fisheries.

MARY MCDOWELL, Conm ssioner, Commrercial Fisheries Entry Conm ssion
(CFEC), Juneau, offered to answer questions of the Conmttee.

Senat or O son asked when the fees were first inplenented.
Conmi ssi oner McDowel | replied that the fees currently charged have
been in place for at |least twenty years. The individual fisheries
bet ween those categori es changes often. She acknow edged that the
original fees are sonmewhat dated.

Senator Lenman stated that there are no provisions for the increased
value for the Alaska fisheries. He thought soneone in the high

SFC- 01 (6) 04/ 28/ 01



val ue fisheries receives a greater value and should pay nore for
the use of the facilities. He added that the biggest disparity is
for the child crewrenber going from$5 dollars to $140 dollars. He
asked if that was a direction of the Court.

Comm ssi oner McDowel | expl ained that the |egislation could make a
policy call on all the fees indicated. In the case of other permt
costs, the bill has been drafted to allowthe State to tack on the
nost cost possible for every non-resident fee.

Senator Lenman clarified that the Court stated that the State coul d
not tack on the differential on the bases of the value of the
fishery.

Comm ssioner McDowell clarified that the State could charge | ess
than that if the Legislature chooses to do it. The State has opted
to tack on the nost possible, in every fee class. She commented
that was optional.

Senat or Leman nai ntai ned that the Court had seriously errored.

Conmi ssi oner McDowel | acknow edged that the hope is that the Courts
will agree with the State so that all categories would be all owed.

Senator Leman asked if the |listing of categories include
i nvestnments which the State has made through corporations such as
Al aska | ndustrial Devel opnment Export Authority (Al DEA).

SFC 01 # 90, Side B 11:16 AM

Senat or Leman referenced capital expenditures used to support the
fishing industry as nmeasured by annual depreciation.

Comm ssi oner McDowel | answered that the Ofice of Managenent and
Budget and the Departnent of Law conbed through the budget and
attenpted to find everything conceivable that could be problematic.

Senat or Hof f man questi oned how nuch currently was being coll ected
with the fee structure in place and what is the anticipated anount
that will be collected thorough the proposed | egislation.

Conmi ssi oner McDowel | referenced the two fiscal notes. She pointed
out that there would be a “slight” gain in overall revenue received

fromnon-residents through the bill. She added that the bill does
not bring in fewer revenues from non-residents, but instead
shuffles the burden down. There will be a slight reduction in the

SFC- 01 (7) 04/ 28/ 01



hi gh-end charge permts.

Senat or Hof f man requested i nformati on be provided to the Commttee
regardi ng the nunber of residents and non-residents in each of the
cl asses. He clainmed that information was inportant for the
Conmittee to make a deci sion.

Comm ssi oner McDowel | offered to provide that infornmation.

Senat or Leman renmenbered that the Court did not use the denom nat or
that the State recomended.

Comm ssi oner McDowel | acknow edged that was correct.

Senator Leman asked if that issue was under appeal. He believed
that either the court msunderstood or msrepresented the reality.

Co- Chair Donley agreed with Senator Lenman that the judge involved
in the case did a very poor job. He added that Judge M chal ski
shoul d be held responsible for his “terrible” |egal performance in
t hat case.

Senat or Austerman recommended that the bill be noved from Commttee
and then find a way to highlight the work of those specific judges
during their re-election tine.

Co-Chair Kelly commented that the court decision is flawed and that
the bill would help to address those concerns.

Senat or W1l ken repeated his question of what an inpoverished non-
resi dent woul d be.

Comm ssi oner McDowel | explained that is defined in regul ati ons used
at this tine. Regulations that were used in the past did not have
eligibility standards. She referenced Page 6, Line 6, and noted
the use of the asset caps.

Senator W1 ken recomended i nvestigating the public policy of that
group. He asked what woul d happen if that |anguage was del et ed.

Conm ssi oner McDowel | noted that the Departnment of Law advi sed that
the State woul d probably be chall enged by not offering that option
to non-residents.

Senat or Austernman pointed out that was not the issue with this bill
and that concern should be addressed in separate |egislation.

Senat or Austerman noved to report CS HB 194 (FIN) out of Commttee

SFC- 01 (8) 04/ 28/ 01



with individual recommendations and with the acconpanying fiscal
not es.

Senat or Lenan objected in order to take testinony by the Departnent
of Law.

STEVE WHI TE, Assistant Attorney General, Departnent of Law,
referenced the Carlson Case. He noted that he had argued that case
to the Suprene Court last tinme. He offered to answer questions of
the Conmittee.

Co-Chair Donl ey asked the possibility of success if the |legislation
fol | omed recomendati ons made by Senator W/ ken.

M. Wite stated that it was a policy call whether to elimnate the
entire fee schedule for everyone. If it was limted to only non-
residents, then there would be an equal protection problemw th the
sanme magni tude that the State is currently having.

Senator WIken requested that the Departnment of Law subnmt a
witten defense for the poverty section of the bill

M. Wite explained that there would be no legal inplication if the
poverty section were renoved for both the residents and the non-
resi dents.

There being no further objections, CS HB 194 (FIN) MOVED from
Commttee with “no recommendations” and with fiscal note #3 by
Departnent of Fish & Gane and #4 by Departnent of Fish & Gane,
CFEC.

#
ADJ OQURNMVENT

Co-Chair Pete Kelly adjourned the neeting at 11:32 A M

SFC- 01 (9) 04/ 28/ 01



